ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 31, 2009
3:04 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel |l er, Co-Chair
Representati ve John Coghil
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 192

“"An Act relating to nonpaynent of <child support; relating to
certain judicial and admnistrative orders for nedical support
of a child; relating to periodic review and adjustnent of child
support orders; relating to relief from admnistrative child
support orders; relating to child support arrearages; relating
to medical support of a child and the Alaska Native famly
assi stance program anmending Rule 90.3, Alaska Rules of Cvil
Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 192 (HSS) OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 71
"An Act relating to a registry for advance health care
directives."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 190

“"An Act privatizing the Alaska children's trust as a separate
endownent fund; providing for an adm nistrator for the assets of
the former trust; establishing conditions for a grant of the
bal ance of the former Alaska children's trust; designating
certain receipts as available for grants to the trust's
successor; and providing for an effective date.”

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 31, 2009



- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 192

SHORT TITLE: CHI LD SUPPORT/ CASH MEDI CAL SUPPORT
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

03/ 18/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 18/ 09 (H) HSS, JUD

03/ 31/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 71

SHORT TI TLE: ADVANCE HEALTH CARE DI RECTI VES REGQ STRY
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( s) HOLMES, DAHLSTROM M LLETT,
KAWASAKI

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) HSS, JUD

03/ 31/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 190

SHORT TITLE: CHI LDREN S TRUST GRANT FOR ENDOAVENT
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FAI RCLOUGH

03/ 16/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 16/ 09 (H) HSS, FIN
03/ 31/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

RYNI EVA MOSS, St aff

to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced HB 192 on behalf of the prine
sponsor, Representative Coghill.

JOHN MALLONEE, Director

Anchorage Central Ofice

Child Support Services Division

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a sectional analysis and answered
guestions about HB 192.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 31, 2009



STACY STEI NBERG, Chi ef Assistant Attorney General;
St at ewi de Section Supervi sor

Commer ci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Department of Law (DQOL)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 192.

PETER PUTZI ER, Seni or Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Opi ni ons, Appeals, & Ethics

G vil Division (Anchorage)

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 192.

A NGER BLAI SDELL, Director

Adm ni strative Services Division

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HB 192.

BOB LCESCHER

Judiciary Conmittee

Sub Commttee of State and Tribal Affairs

Central Council Tlingit & Haida Indian Tribes of Al aska
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HB 192.

JESSI E ARCHI BALD, Attorney

Tribal Child Support Program

Central Council Tlingit & Haida Indian Tribes of Al aska
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HB 192.

M KE FORD, Assistant Attorney General & Legislative Liaison
Legi sl ati on & Regul ati ons Secti on

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Department of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about HB 192.

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director

AARP

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of HB 71.

REPRESENTATI VE ANNA FAI RCLOUGH

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 31,

2009



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 190 as the prinme sponsor.

CRYSTAL KCENEMAN, St aff

to Representative Anna Faircl ough

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 190 on behalf of the prine
sponsor, Representative Fairclough, and answered questi ons.

CARLEY LAWRENCE, Chair

Friends of the Alaska Children's Trust (FACT) Board
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 190.

SAMWE POKRYFKI, Vice Chair

Friends of the Alaska Children's Trust (FACT)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 190.

ARLI SS STURGULEWSKI
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 190.

DI ANE KAPLAN, Board Menber

Al aska Children's Trust (ACT)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 190.

G NGER BAIM Executive Director

Saf e and Fear Free Environnment (SAFE)

Di|'l'i ngham Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 190.

CAROL SI MONETTI, President & CEO

Al aska Communi ty Foundati on

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 190.

PANU LUCI ER, Executive Director

Alaska Children's Trust (ACT) and Friends of the Al aska
Children's Trust (FACT)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 190.

MARGARET VOLZ, Vice Chair
Al aska Children's Trust (ACT) Board

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 31, 2009



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 190.

JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comnri ssi oner

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions about HB
190.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:04: 30 PM

CO CHAIR BOB HERRON called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3:04 p. m
Representatives Herron, Keller, Seaton, Coghill, and Hol nes were
present at the call to order. Representative Lynn arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 192- CH LD SUPPORT/ CASH MEDI CAL SUPPORT

3:04:54 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 192, "An Act relating to nonpaynent of child
support; relating to certain judicial and adm nistrative orders
for nmedical support of a child; relating to periodic review and
adjustnment of child support orders; relating to relief from
adm nistrative child support orders; relating to child support
arrearages; relating to nedical support of a child and the
Al aska Native famly assistance progranm anending Rule 90. 3,
Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure; and providing for an effective
date."

3:05:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt CSHB 192, Version 26-
LS0483\P, M schel, 3/30/09, as the working docunent. There
being no objection, CSHB 192, Version P, was adopted as the
wor ki ng docunent .

3:06: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, prime sponsor of HB 192, said that HB
192 was introduced at the request of the admnistration. He
presented a high level review of the bill, and explained that it
emanated from a federal requirenent. He noted that HB 192

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 31, 2009



included conformng |anguage, a definition of the Uniform
Interstate Fam |y Support Act (U FSA), and the adm nistration of
the order of support for the Child Support Services Division.

He referred to Section 3 of the bill, and ascertained that this
was a federal mandate in order for Alaska to receive federal
noney. He directed attention to the definition for "state"
contained in Section 3 (19) which was anended to include "an
Indian tribe." He pointed out that Al askan tribal issues were
based in enrollnment, bloodline, and corporation whereas in the
Lower 48, the tribal issues were based on geography. He

expl ai ned the intent |anguage in Section 1(b) which read:

In Alaska, the scope of tribal authority to enter,
nmodify, or enforce a <child support order is an
unsettled |legal question, due in part to the lack of
Indian country in nost of the state. In adopting
U FSA conform ng anmendnments, the |egislature does not
intend to grant or restrict tribal jurisdiction to
enter, nodify, or enforce child support orders, and
the anendnments are not intended, either directly or
inpliedly, to acknow edge, expand, or restrict tribal
jurisdiction.

He summarized that this tribal definition declared that Al aska
was different than the 48 contiguous states.

3:09:42 PM

CO-CHAIR HERRON asked if the Tanana chiefs were involved wth
this definition.

3:10: 04 PM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL replied that he had wrked on the
definition with the Ofice of the Attorney CGeneral. He stressed
that this definition was an unsettled question in Al aska, and
that acceptance of the federal definition could create serious
i ssues in Al aska. He expressed his desire that it not beconme a
bi g i ssue in Al aska.

3:10: 52 PM

RYNI EVA MOSS, Staff to Representative John Coghill, Alaska State
Legi slature, said that she would divide the sections of the bill
into four categories: Sections 2, 4, 5, 9, 10, 11, and 12 add
cash nedi cal support for sections of the |law that apply to child
support and health insurance wunder existing law, Section 1

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2009



redefines the word "state" to include "the United States Virgin
| sl ands” and "an Indian tribe"; Section 4 required child support
to review cases on a three year cycle; Sections 7 and 8 allow
the child support agency to correct a clerical error in an

adm nistrative order without a notion from the obligor. She
noted that the first three categories were required to conply
with federal law, or lose $18 nillion annually in federal
f undi ng.

3:13:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to cash nedical support orders,
and asked if this bill was seeking conform ng |anguage, or were
t hese support orders currently issued.

M5. MOSS replied that Al aska had nedical support orders, but not
cash nedical support orders. She reported that the bill would
i ncl ude bot h. She explained that this would extend to both
custodi al and non-custodi al parents.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL reported that it was currently assuned
the obligor had insurance, but that this proposed bill broadened
that both parents would be assuned to have insurance or cash
medi cal support, in lieu of insurance.

3:15:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether there was a necessity for
cash nedi cal support if there was nedical insurance.

3:16: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL, in response to Representative Seaton,
said that the cash was for nedical coverage.

3:17: 40 PM

JOHN MALLONEE, Director, Anchorage Central Ofice, Child Support
Services Division, Departnment of Revenue (DOR), said that child
support was a federally mandated, but state operated program
He explained the federal requirenents and the federal funding
for the program He described the three areas that HB 192
addressed for changes of the state statute in order to neet
federal requirenments for funding: the first area was within the
Uniform Interstate Famly Support Act (U FSA), an act which
provided efficient procedures for the <collection of child
support in interstate cases and elimnated nultiple support

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2009



orders, and he pointed out that the Al aska definition of "state"
woul d need to conform to that in U FSA, the second area was in
regard to child nedical support, and he pointed out that HB 192
added to existing law "the authority to order either or both
parents to pay cash nedical support if warranted;" the third
area addressed support orders, and he noted that under HB 192
clients could now request a review at any tine, that child
support orders nust now be reviewed at |east every three years,
and that |anguage was renoved which limted who could request a
correction of (1) a clerical mstake in an admnistrative order
or, (2) a decision based on default inconme, and not the ability
to pay.

3:23:21 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked if the state had been out of conpliance
si nce 1996.

MR. MALLONEE agreed, with regard for the definition of "state."

CO-CHAIR KELLER asked what had occurred to nake this now nore
important than in 1996.

MR. MALLONEE said that this had been brought to the attention of
the federal Ofice of Child Support Enforcenent, which sent a
pre-notice letter of consequences for non-conpliance to (Al aska)
Child Support Services Division.

MR. MALLONEE, in response to Co-Chair Herron, offered his belief
that it had been previously overl ooked.

3:25:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 3, line 20 of the bill
whi ch read, "agency shall issue a support order,"” and he asked
to define a cash nedical support order

3:26: 07 PM

MR. MALLONEE expl ained that the Child Support Services Division
first determ ned whether either party had health insurance, and
if not, then a set anmpunt of noney was required as cash nedica
support.

3:27:33 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if this was limted to co-pay or
deductibles in addition to the insurance.

3:28:15 PM

MR. MALLONEE, in response to Representative Seaton, said that
the cash nedical support was in lieu of insurance. He noted
that non covered nedical paynment s, such as co-pay and
deducti bles, were already addressed in statute. He pointed out
that this applied to people who had no nedical insurance
available to them so that sone noney was avail able for nedica
expenses.

3:29: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify the need for "or both"
| anguage in the bill with reference to "a nedical support order”
and "a cash nedi cal support order."

3:29: 44 PM

MR. MALLONEE replied that it was required |anguage, and he
t heori zed on the possibilities for the need of both.

3:30: 58 PM

STACY STEINBERG Chief Assistant Attorney General;, Statew de
Section Supervisor, Commercial/Fair Business Section, GCvi
Di vision (Anchorage), Departnment of Law (DOL), said that she was
avai | abl e to answer questi ons.

3:31: 30 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked what |egal effect the proposed intent
| anguage for the definition of "state" in HB 192 would have for
a legal determnation to tribal jurisdiction

3:32:32 PM

PETER PUTZIER, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Opinions,
Appeal s, & Ethics, Gvil Division (Anchorage), Departnent of Law
(DOL), replied that the |egal question was whether the state was
changi ng any procedures under the U FSA He relayed that the
tribal argument mght be the inplication that jurisdiction was
intended. He said that the intent |anguage of HB 192 was cl ear,
and that this was not a position, nerely a conform ng anendnent.
He said that the unresolved issues were whether the inherent

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 31, 2009



jurisdiction of the tribes was extended for <child support
orders, specifically in Alaska. He opined that HB 192 woul d not
be a central argunent for resolution.

3:36:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to "other insurance coverage" on
page 3, line 24, and asked if that was Denali Kid Care.

3:37:33 PM

MS. STEINBERG explained that Denali Kid Care was not private
i nsurance, but a form of public assistance; therefore, it would
not cover this. She said that Indian Health Service care would
suffice, as would mlitary health care.

3:38: 24 PM

G NGER BLAI SDELL, Director, Admnistrative Services Division,
Departnent of Revenue (DOR), reiterated that the first pre-
notice letter for non-conpliance was received on March 27, 2009,
and it stated that block grant funds for Tenporary Assistance to
Needy Families (TANF) would be at risk if the state did not
enact conformng child support |egislation. She stated that HB

192 would enact all the necessary conformng |aws. She said
that the ampbunt of noney at risk for the state was about $85
mllion. She enphasized that it was critical to conform to
Ul FSA.

3:40: 40 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON asked if Alaska had been aware of not being in
conformty, even though the federal government was not.

3:41: 01 PM

MS. BLAI SDELL said that Al aska had been aware for a short tine.
She said that Al aska had requested a waiver on January 29, 2009,
whi ch was deni ed.

3:41:53 PM

MS. BLAI SDELL, in response to Co-Chair Herron, said that she did
not know when a warning letter would arrive.

3:42:18 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that, unless Alaska was willing to
do sonething else for its citizens, it was necessary to pass
this bill.

3:43: 45 PM

BOB LOESCHER, Judiciary Conmittee, Sub Committee of State and
Tribal Affairs, Central Council Tlingit & Haida Indian Tribes of
Al aska, reported that he had been working on the federal
conpliance issue for several nonths, and he stressed the inpact
this would have on Al askan famlies and children. He di scussed
the Central Council of Tlingit & Haida tribal child support
program which did not use state funds, but was funded directly
from the federal governnment. He shared that the tribe
cooperated with the state children services and the DOR He
confirmed that Al askan tribes were recognized under the United
States constitution, by the U S. Congress, and by the Secretary

of the Interior. He pointed out that the Statehood Act
recogni zed Al askan native peoples, which was based on tribal
enrollment. He asked that the |egislature recognize that tribes
did exist, as there was a mutual benefit for cooperation wth
the tribes on prograns of common interest. He noted that this
kept people working, kept children safe, and kept famlies fed
and taken care of. He pointed out that Alaska was the only

state which did not include "Indian tribe" in adoption of the
federal act. He said that the Central Council supported HB 192,
but he opined that Section 1(b) of the intent |anguage did not
conply with federal |[aw He suggested that the jurisdiction
should be decided by the courts, and not be witten into
| egi sl ati on. He offered his opinion that it was not helpful to
the rel ationshi ps.

3:52:41 PM

JESSIE ARCH BALD, Attorney, Tribal Child Support Program
Central Council Tlingit & Haida Indian Tribes of Al aska,
explained that the purpose of UFSA was for conformng
procedures anmong states and tribal jurisdictions for child
support orders. She stated that Section 1(b) was contradictory,
and did not support the purpose of U FSA She shared that
tribes in Alaska now had their own federally funded child
support prograns. She offered her belief that the purpose of
the program was to provide child support, not to argue about
jurisdiction. She agreed that this was a procedural statute.

3:55:54 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 31, 2009



CO CHAI R HERRON asked to clarify that M. Loescher supported the
proposed CS for HB 192, except for Section 1(b).

MR. LCESCHER asked to clarify that "uncodified" nmeant that it
was proposed and that "codified" neant that it was already in
statute.

3:57:10 PM

M KE FORD, Assistant Attorney General & Legislative Liaison,
Legislation & Regulations Section, GCvil Division (Juneau),
Departnment of Law (DOL), said that the reference to uncodified
| aw neant that there was not an AS section assigned, and that it
was in a different section of the statutes, but he clarified
that it was still |aw

3:58: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, in response to M. Loescher and M.
Archibald, said that there were other tests of authority to be
wor ked out. He affirned that this needed to work for all
Al askans. He explained that Alaska had different tribal issues
than the Ilower 48 states, and he noted that Alaska had
enrol | ment based progranms which were not geographically based

as in nost other states. He welconed the Tlingit & Haida
i nvol venent with child support progranms and the TANF program
He explained that the language in HB 192, Section 1(b) was not
intended to grant or restrict tribal jurisdiction. He endorsed
support for Alaskan famlies and chil dren.

4:03: 38 PM

CO- CHAIR KELLER reiterated that the bill |anguage in Section
1(b) stated "does not grant or restrict,” which was not a
statenent on tribal jurisdiction. He considered the rest of the
bill to be procedural for conformation to federal regulations.
4:04: 33 PM

MR. LOESCHER asked about the guidance nmeno from the governor and
t he conm ssioner of the DOR He reflected that the |anguage in
that meno was cl earer than the | anguage in Section 1(b).

4:05:19 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON asked that the guidance nmeno be placed in the
bill file. He noted that M. Loescher and M. Archibald had

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 31, 2009



concerns with Section 1(b), and that they suggested for it to be
del et ed.

4:06:13 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from4:06 p.m to 4:07 p.m

4:07: 06 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER noved to report CSHB 192, Version 26-LS0483\P
out of commttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanyi ng zero fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB
192 (HSS) was reported fromthe House Health and Social Services
Standi ng Comm ttee.

HB 71- ADVANCE HEALTH CARE DI RECTI VES REG STRY

4:07:29 PM

CO- CHAI R HERRON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 71, "An Act relating to a registry for advance
health care directives."

4:08: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES explained that the current persona
advance health care directive docunents were not easily
accessi bl e shoul d soneone becone incapacitated. She established
that HB 71 allowed for a voluntary online cataloging for a
personal advance health care directive. She described that the
docunent would be submtted to the Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS) and put into an electronic format, which
would allow health care facilities to access it at a patient's
request. She noted that an anendnent to the bill was
forthcom ng, as the original bill had placed unintended
financi al burdens on DHSS.

4:11:29 PM

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director, AARP, said that AARP was in strong
support of HB 71. He explained that AARP had |ong encouraged
its nenbers to conplete advanced health care directives, and he
poi nted out the problem of emergency hospitalization wthout the
health care directive acconpanying the person. He stated that
HB 71 would alleviate that problem He enphasized that this
woul d establish a nmeans for health care providers to "follow the
wi shes of their patients."”

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- March 31, 2009



4:12:39 PM
[HB 71 was hel d over.]

HB 190- CH LDREN S TRUST GRANT FOR ENDOWENT

4:13: 01 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 190, "An Act privatizing the Alaska children's
trust as a separate endowrent fund; providing for an
adm nistrator for the assets of the former trust; establishing
conditions for a grant of the balance of the forner Al aska
children's trust; designating certain receipts as available for
grants to the trust's successor; and providing for an effective
date."

4:13: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ANNA FAI RCLOUGH, Al aska State Legislature, read
that "the mssion of the Trust [Alaska Children's Trust (ACT)]
was to inprove the status of children in Alaska by generating
funds and conmitting resources to elimnate child abuse and

negl ect. " She reported that the Alaska Children's Trust was
established in 1988, and in 1996, it was given an appropriation
of $6 million by the state of Al aska. She discussed the current

value of the trust, and stated that the Alaska Comunity
Foundation had lost less investnent value than the Pernmanent

Fund. She identified FACT as the Friends of the Al aska
Children's Trust, a private group which raised additional funds
to address child abuse and neglect in Al aska. She expl ai ned

that donors to FACT could not specifically dedicate funds as all
the donations went into the state of Al aska general fund. She
described that ACT grants could only fund to a specific
percentage each year, which she opined was not good for
addressing the long termissues of child abuse and neglect. She
presented that the Alaska Community Foundation would be better
suited to mnage the ACT funds, and wuld give greater
flexibility for generating and distributing dollars. She not ed
that it was currently inplied in state statute that funding
could only be used for prograns of prevention for child abuse

and neglect, and not for research. She summarized that HB 190
would allow. a public-private partnership, a consistent funding
stream a change in fund nmanagenent, and for continued

adm nistrative cost to be provided by marriage licenses, birth

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 31, 2009



certificates, and special request children's fund I|icense
pl at es.

4:19:51 PM

CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, Staff to Representative Anna Fairclough,
Al aska State Legislature, presented the sectional analysis on HB
190. [Included in the nenbers' packets.] She expl ai ned that
Sections 1-5 allowed the |legislature to appropriate funds
gener at ed from birth certificates, hei rl oom marri age
certificates, and children's fund special license plates,
account for them separately, and to give these funds to the
endownent fund held by the charitable naned recipient grantee.
She noted that Section 6 discussed managenent of the endowrent
fund, which allowed the legislature to transfer the bal ance of
the ACT to a charitable naned recipient grantee, and to be held
as a permanent endownrent fund for <child abuse and neglect
prevention activities. She discussed Section 7, which created a
grant adm nistrator and determned the duties. She affirnmed
that Section 8 was clean up language to repeal current ACT
st at ut es. She said that Section 9 anmended the Uncodified |aw,
and explained that it was contingent on the appropriation of the
ACT funds to a naned recipient grantee. She summari zed that
Section 10 explained the effective date of the act.

4:25:26 PM

CO- CHAIR HERRON asked for clarification of the March 30, 2009
menor andum from Legislative Legal and Research Servi ces,
di scussing the ACT reference after repeal of the trust.
[Included in the nenbers' packets.]

4:25:50 PM

M5. KOENEMAN asked if he was referring to the neno that
acconpani ed t he anmendnent .

4:26:41 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said that there were conflicting |egal
opinions to the ability of the legislature to appropriate an

asset and al |l ow another party to manage those funds.

4:28:07 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- March 31, 2009



M5. KOENEMAN confirmed that the Legislative Legal and Research
Services nenorandum [Included in the nenbers' packets.] stated
that making this an endownent fund which referenced a repeal ed
trust that no longer existed in statute, for the purpose of fee
collection, created an unenforceable provision in codified |aw.
She reasoned that the public recognized the |license plates as
Al aska Children's Trust plates, so that nmintaining the sane
name woul d avoi d unnecessary confusion for donations.

4:29: 45 PM
CARLEY LAWRENCE, Chair, Friends of the Alaska Children's Trust

(FACT) Board, pointed out that the code of ethics for fund
raising stated that contributions should be used in accordance

with donors' intentions. She ascertained that FACT could not
guarantee that the donors' intent wuld be net, as the
| egi sl ature had control of the funds. She explained that this

limted the FACT trust from generating additional funds. She
of fered her support for HB 190.

4:31:44 PM

SAMMWE POKRYFKI, Vice Chair, Friends of the Alaska Children's
Trust (FACT), said that she supported HB 190. She confirned
that the primary purpose of FACT was to raise funds for the ACT.
She reiterated the ethical dilenma of honoring the donor's
intent when they solicited contributions. She stated that only
the dividends and interest generated by the trust were avail able
for grants, and that this was an unpredictabl e anbunt each year.
She explained that establishing this trust as an endownent woul d
al l ow donations to be spent as intended, and it would ensure a
predi ctable distribution each year. She said that FACT board
menbers voted unani mously for privatization of the ACT

4:33:53 PM

ARLI SS STURGULEWBKI said that she was a supporter of ACT. She
menti oned that she was a |egislator when ACT was introduced and
f unded. She offered her support for the privatization of the
trust, as she believed that neeting the donors' intent was very
i mportant.

4:36:46 PM
DI ANE KAPLAN, Board Menber, Al aska Children's Trust (ACT), said

that she had been involved with the trust for nore than 12
years. She said that the restrictions of current funding

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- March 31, 2009



structure made it difficult to have an inpact on the goal of ACT
to elimnate child abuse and negl ect.

4:40: 09 PM
CO CHAI R KELLER asked what the criteria were for funding.
4:41:18 PM

M5. KAPLAN said that the focus was on new, young first tine
parents in rural conmmunities. She shared that research had
i ndi cated that young people were not prepared to becone parents.

4:43: 02 PM

G NGER BAIM Executive Director, Safe and Fear Free Environnment
(SAFE), stated that SAFE had been a recipient of ACT grants.
She explained sone of its prevention work, which included
subst ance abuse and fetal alcohol syndrone. She said that SAFE
supported privatization of ACT, as it would assure steady and

dependabl e grant nanagenent. She agreed that privatization
woul d increase and enhance donors, as the donor would be
guaranteed the funds were used as intended. She expressed her

support of HB 190.
4:46:49 PM
CAROL SI MONETTI, President & CEO Al aska Community Foundati on,

expl ai ned the background of the Al aska Conmunity Foundati on,
whi ch was proposed as the fiscal sponsor of the endowrent fund

for the ACT. She shared that it had been in existence since
1996, and that it was one of nore than 700 community foundations
across the country. She reported that it had $35 mllion in
assets in nore than 210 funds, and that in 2008, it had paid out
nore than $10 nmillion in grants. She explained that it was an
endownent with a mssion to build charitable resources to neet
current needs. She explained the reasons it would be the

appropriate choice to manage an endownent fund to prevent child
abuse and neglect, which included an assurance that funds would
be used for the intended purpose, and that the foundation had
expertise in the managenent of endowed funds.

4:52: 03 PM
PANU LUCI ER, Executive Director, Alaska Children's Trust (ACT)

and Friends of the Alaska Children's Trust (FACT), explained
that the groups believed that there was a better way to increase

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- March 31, 2009



grant funds and reach underserved comunities. She opined that
privatizing ACT woul d enhance the ability to focus grants in the
hi ghest need areas. She said it would allow ACT and FACT to
nerge and take on ethical fundraising to ensure the long term
stability of the funds, with a nore efficient process. She
opined that this would still protect the original |egislative
intent to create a children's trust in perpetuity.

4:59:57 PM

MARGARET VOLZ, Vice Chair, Alaska Children's Trust (ACT) Board

agreed that privatization would allow flexibility in the choice
of prograns for prevention of child abuse and in the pursuit of
f undi ng.

5:03:28 PM

JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Commi ssioner, Departnent of Revenue (DOR),
said that both the comm ssioners of Departnment of Health and
Soci al Services and Departnent of Education and  Early
Devel opnent voted to privatize ACT. He acknowl edged that there
were problems with the current managenment of the ACT. He
reported that the trust had about $7.2 mllion, which was part
of the $15 billion that DOR managed, and he detailed the asset
all ocations for the trust. He explained that the trust was
divided into two accounts, the income account and the main
account . He stated that currently only the income account was
spendabl e. He said that legislation could make the trust an
endowrent, which could allow access to nore of the account. He
expressed concern with the concept of taking state noney and
granting it to a private organization for managenent toward a
speci fic outcone.

5:07:48 PM

CO CHAIR HERRON suggested that DOR had not done "a very good
j ob" with rmanagenent of the trust.

5:08: 37 PM

MR. BURNETT, in response to Co-Chair Herron, said that the asset
allocation for the trust was based on investnents with a |ong
time horizon. He patiently explained that the stock market had
its third worst performance in the |ast 218 years. He pointed
out that the trust perfornmance was simlar to the Constitutional
Budget Reserve account and the Pernmanent Fund account, all of

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 18- March 31, 2009



whi ch had been professionally managed with the appropriate tine
hori zon.

5:09:59 PM

CO CHAIR HERRON expressed concern with the [|onger financial
hi story, and he opined that, as the trust was a small part of
the much larger investnent portfolio, it was not a big concern
for DOR

5:11: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if this issue was parallel to the
Suprene Court decision which rendered as unconstitutional the
Uni versity of Al aska | and endownent.

5:12: 02 PM

MVR. BURNETT agreed that this was an issue that t he
admnistration was still review ng. He detailed that the
account inconme was appropriated each year by the |egislature and
transferred to a private account which dedicated the noney for a
specific purpose. He asked if this was a way around the
constitutional provision against dedicated funds.

5:12: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Co-Chair Herron, asked if
the objection was for the legislature not appropriating
sufficient noney out of the incone fund, or that the fund
managenent had not generated sufficient noney.

5:13: 26 PM

MR. BURNETT, in response to Representative Seaton, said that the
fund could only spend dividends and gains, which were part of

the incone account. He explained that the incone was not
consistent from year to year; therefore the grants would not be
consi stent. He expressed that this would be different with an

endownent account, whereby a percentage could be appropriated to
provi de nore consi stent avail able incone.

5:14: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if it was possible for a statutory
change to a percent of market value (POW) for the ACT.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -19- March 31, 2009



5:14:51 PM

MR. BURNETT replied that he was not aware of anything to prevent
this.

5:14:59 PM

M5. KAPLAN said that an endowent fund was nmanaged for
consi stency. She said that ACT had been requesting a
| egi sl ati ve change for many years, but that it had not happened.
She noted the hesitancy of donors to wite a check to the state
of Al aska, when their intent was to donate to ACT.

5:17:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH said that she had net wth the
attorney general, and was wanting for a ruling. She enphasi zed
that this was a |life changing issue that affected children every
day. She explained that putting the ACT into an endownrent would
still allow the governor to appoint the board, and the
| egislature to maintain the fund in perpetuity.

[ HB 190 was hel d over.]

5:20:17 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 5:20 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 20- March 31, 2009



